1)
2)

3)
4)
)
6)
7)
8)
9)

AGENDA
MEETING OF THE MARSHALL PLANNING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY — DECEMBER 14, 2022
COUNCIL CHAMBERS — CITY HALL
5:30 P.M.

Call to Order

Consider the approval of the minutes of the November 9, 2022, regular meeting of the
Marshall Planning Commission.

Conduct Public Hearing on Marshall 2040 Comprehensive Plan

Consider Ordinance amending Section 86-1 Definitions

Consider Ordinance repealing Section 86-51 Bed and Breakfast

Consider Ordinance amending Section 86-97 One-Family Residence District
Consider Ordinance amending Section 86-230 Required number of spaces
Other Business

Adjourn



--UNAPPROVED --

MINUTES OF THE
MARSHALL PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 9, 2022

MEMBERS PRESENT: Lee, Deutz, Doom, Stoneberg, Pieper and Muchlinski
MEMBERS ABSENT:
OTHERS PRESENT: Jason Anderson, Ilya Gutman, Dennis Simpson, and Amanda Schroeder

1.

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Lee. She asked for the approval of the minutes of
the September 14, 2022, regular meeting of the Marshall Planning Commission. Deutz MADE A
MOTION, SECOND BY Stoneberg, to approve the minutes as written. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR
OF THE MOTION.

Chairperson Lee call for an election for a Vice Chair. Deutz nominate Muchlinski second by
Stoneberg. Vice Chair is Muchlinski.

. McNally Management LLC applied for a Conditional Use Permit for an advertising sign at 705

West Main Street. Gutman explained that the memo is incorrect. This is not a LED changing
billboard; this is a tradition billboard that has vinyl advertising. Chad Hagar with Summit
Locations was attending by Zoom. Hagar said it is correct; this is much like the traditional
billboards. Doom asked for clarification if this sign is going to be lighted. Hagar explained it is a
lighted sign, but it is lighted to illuminate the face. Gutman said that with this being a traditional
billboard, we will remove conditions 4, 5 and 6 from the recommendation, because they are not
applicable to the traditional billboard. The new billboard will consist of four panels, 8 fect by 20
feet each, installed one above each other and at an angle to each other to face traffic in both
directions. The overall height of the sign is requested to be 32 feet. Each panel size is less than
maximum allowed length of 55 feet and there are two sign panels per side, as limited by the
ordinance. All conditions may be revised, or new conditions added by both the Planning
Commission and the City Council. Staff recommends a motion to recommend to City Council an
approval of the request of McNally Management LLC, for a Conditional Use Permit for an
advertising sign at 705 West Main Street, subject to the following conditions:

1. The sign must be installed as shown on attached sketch. A survey showing exact sign
location by the registered land surveyor shall be filed with the City of Marshall prior to sign
installation. The sign or any part thereof shall not encroach into any public right-of-way or
adjacent property.

2. This permit is for the sign structure described as follows:

a. Two double panels will be installed at an angle to each other (four sign panels total).

b. Each sign panel shall be no greater than 8 feet by 20 feet.

c. The overall height of the sign shall be no more than 32 feet.
Prior to sign installation, a sign permit application must be applied and paid for. Structural
drawings showing sign footing and foundations shall be signed by a registered professional
engineer and submitted along the sign permit application.

3. The sign structure shall be maintained in a safe condition and all surfaces maintained without
blemish or defects. The current land and sign owner, and all future sign and landowners are
fully responsible for maintenance, together or separately.

4. Obtain the required permit from the State Department of Transportation.

Muchlinski MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Deutz to close the public hearing. ALL VOTED
IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION. Muchlinski MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Stoneberg to
recommend to City Council as recommended by staff with conditions 1 through 4. ALL. VOTED

Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission — 11-9-22



--UNAPPROVED --
IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION.

4. Gutman said this is a request from the owner to approve building a new store with five feet side
yard instead of required 10 feet side yard and provide 29 parking space instead of required 33
spaces. The new building is proposed to be built five feet away from the east property line. The
owner wants to maximize the width of the driveway located on the west side of the lot and leading
to the required parking in the back. The owner also wants to reduce parking to free space for
required landscaping; they state that parking as suggested (4 spaces fewer than required) will be
adequate based on experience and estimates of store foot traffic. Granting of a variance may be
permitted only if the request meets the “practical difficulties” test, which requires that proposed use
is reasonable (it is); the problem is caused by the conditions unique to this property (the property is
relatively small, but that can be resolved by slightly reducing the building size or shifting it and
there is enough room for required parking and landscaping); and that granting the variance will not
change the character of the area (no other building around has a five foot side yard, even though
the “character” of the area will most likely not be affected). It seems that two out of three
conditions are at least partially not met. Staff recommends denial to the City Council of the request
by Levi Bond / Iron Horse Development for a Variance Adjustment Permit to have a reduced side
yard and reduced parking. Levi Bond went over the variance conditions that made this unique: it is
a redevelopment of a property for a Family Dollar chain, so the building is fixed in its size. It is
also placed on existing lot in an area developed long ago. He talked about character of the area and
listed 2 other businesses that do not meet the set back. He said Family Dollar stores have been
doing well. Deutz asked if the extra 5 ft on the East are to give the extra 5 ft to drive on the west.
Bond said yes. Doom questioned the parking in the rear and if to get into the store one will still
need to go to the front. Bond said it is more for staff and to meet more of the parking requirements.
Lee asked how many parking spots are in the front. Bond said 17. Schroeder asked what the plan is
if the variance is not granted. Bond said they would have to go back to the tenant. Doom
questioned driveway width. Bond said making it narrower would make it more difficult for the
delivery trucks to get though. He said in the past people have driven on each other’s property and
that is something they do not want to do. Lee asked if she goes and must park in the back, is there a
sidewalk to get to the front. Bond said it will be completely paved. Doom said the neighbor is
concerned about driving on their lot; is there a plan for putting in a curb. Bond said that was not the
plan and that they reached out about shared access, but the neighbor never got back. They can put
in a curb if Planning Commission want to require that, but they are just putting it back the way it
was. Muchlinski asked if they can make building smaller. Bond said no, these are all predesigned.
Stoneberg asked if in reality they are only expecting 17 people in the store at the same time. Bond
said that is correct; 5 to 10 at a time is typical and people are usually in and out in about 5 to 10
minutes. Ultimately, if the tenant is comfortable, then it is believed to be enough as the tenant
wouldn’t want to lose business. Doom asked if they could put 4 more parking spaces in the back.
Bond said they can, but then they wouldn’t be able to meet the landscaping ordinance. They like to
have the green space to help with run off. Schroeder inquired if there is a concern for drainage
issues. Anderson said staff have not got into that yet, but he believes they will be just fine.
Muchlinski asked if there are other properties that don’t meet the set back. Anderson said yes,
some are older buildings that were built before the ordinance. Pieper asked if there is any negative
impact in setting a precedence. Anderson said when we make all of our decisions, we need to think
about future implications. Gutman said the main thing is consistency. Doom MADE A MOTION,
SECOND BY Muchlinski to close the public hearing. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE
MOTION. Doom said the lot has been vacant for a long time, so when we can develop it, it’s a
benefit to the city and just like several lots in that area, they are long and narrow. The safety with
the trucking in and out needs consideration. Gutman said the Planning Commission can add

Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission — 11-9-22



--UNAPPROVED --

conditions. Lee said it would be nice to get a business in that area. Doom said they can put more
parking in the back, but we have enough asphalt in the city. Stoneberg asked about the condition to
put a sidewalk. Muchlinski said that would defeat the intent where the trucks come through. Doom
MADE A MOTION to approve both as requested, since area is an old part of town and those lots
are long and narrow. Rather than adding more parking in the back, to have green space is more
important and it looks better, SECOND BY Muchlinski to recommend to City Council as
requested. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION.

5. Anderson informed that Dollar General has purchased two lots for development of their retail store.
The building that is being constructed sits atop the lot line that separates the two lots. City of
Marshall Zoning Ordinance requires property line setbacks; therefore, a building cannot be
constructed over top of a lot line. Due to an error in property descriptions, Lyon County is not
allowing for the two lots to be combined into one lot to resolve the lot line issue. To resolve the
issue, Dollar General is going through a platting process to resolve description concerns and to
combine the existing two lots. Staff recommends a motion to recommend approval of the
preliminary plat of DG Marshall to the City Council, subject to utility companies review
and recommendations. Deutz MADE A MOTION, SECOND BY Stoneberg to recommend to City
Council as recommend by staff. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF THE MOTION.

6. Gutman said Ordinance amending Sections 86-205 Access, 86-206 Construction and maintenance,
and 86-226 Minimum size regulations are minor changes to parking ordinance brought up by real
life. The changes allow for a narrower two-way street access drive beyond required front yard,
which will let landowners save money on pavement and reduce impervious surfaces, while not
negatively affecting safety; require that principal use parking on the lot be paved, which will
prevent large gravel parking lots in business areas, since only accessory parking to the main
structure is currently covered by the Ordinance; and increase minimum sidewalk width in front of
the shorter parking places to make sure that an accessible path is still available if a vehicle’s front
projects over sidewalk. Staff recommends the recommendation to the City Council approving the
revisions amending Sections 86-205 Access, 86-206 Construction and maintenance, and 86-226
Minimum size regulations as recommended by staff. Muchlinski MADE A MOTION, SECOND
BY Deutz to recommend to City Council as recommend by staff. ALL VOTED IN FAVOR OF
THE MOTION.

7. In other business. Gutman mentioned the Comp Plan will be published for public comments and
then will come to the Planning Commission at the next meeting

8. A MOTION WAS MADE BY Doom, SECOND BY Deutz to adjourn the meeting. ALL VOTED
IN FAVOR. Chairperson Lee declared the meeting adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,
Chris DeVos, Recording Secretary

Minutes of the Marshall Planning Commission — 11-9-22



SRF Memorandum

Date: December 7, 2022
To: City of Marshall Planning Commission
From Stephanie Falkets and Mitchell Brouse, SRF Consulting Group

Subject: Proposed Adoption of Matshall 2040 Comprehensive Plan

Action Recommended

Motion to close public hearing.

Consulting staff recommends a motion to recommend approval of the Marshall 2040
Comprehensive Plan to the City Council.

Background

Minnesota State Law (Minnesota Statute §462.351), requites that all communities that wish to adopt
and enfotce zoning regulations or subdivision regulations shall have a Comprehensive Plan that
guides the development and implementation of those official controls. Under State Statute, plans
should include a combination of policy statements, goals, standards, and maps that guide the
physical, social, and economic development of the community.

At ts core, the Comprehensive Plan should include policies and recommendations on land use that
guide future land use decisions. Howevet comprehensive plans generally include information on
other topics, including economic development, utilities and facilities, the environment, cultural
resources, and others.

The City of Marshall’s existing Comprehensive Land Use Plan was adopted in 1996 and later
amended in 2004. While Minnesota law does not include specific requirements for how often

Marshall’s comprehensive must be updated, due to the plans age, it does not provide relevant
guidance for Marshall today, nor does it include up to date data and information about the
community. This plan update provides the opportunity to:

e Respond to changes in community demogtaphics and update population projections;
e Identify and integrate community input on the future of Marshall; and
e Include information about recent development activities within the city.

www.srfconsulting.com
3701 Wayzata Boulevard, Suite 100 | Minneapolis, MN 55416-3791 | 763.475.0010
Egqual Employment Opportunity | Affirmative Action Employer



Marshall 2040 Comprehensive Plan December 7, 2022
Page 2

Process

This plan was developed over a 15-month planning process that included input from a number of
community stakeholdets, including a Comprehensive Plan Task Force, City of Marshall staff, local
and tregional stakeholders, and community membets.

e Comptrehensive Plan Task Force — Made up of a variety of community membets, the Task
Force members were asked to actively participate in the plan’s development, provide input
and review, represent the diverse views of the community, and promote the planning
process.

e Engagement Activities — A vatiety of community engagement activities were hosted in an
effort to understand and incorporate the community opinions into the planning process.
Those activities included: 1) a City Kick-Off Event; 2) Task Force Meetings; 3) Community
Sutvey and Open House; 4) Focus Group Meetings; and 5) Draft Plan Open House.

Plan development phases included:

1) Community Background — initiated the process and produced a summary of existing
conditions within Marshall.

2) Community Issue Identification — using the information that was collected duting the
community background phase, key issues and opportunities were identified and refined
through the community survey and open house.

3) Community Goals —issues and opportunities were translated into key themes, goals, and
priotities, representing a desired vision for the community.

4) Plan Element Analysis — resulted in a detailed understanding of what the community wants
Marshall to become, and how to get there.

5) Plan Development — all information from the phases above were compiled into a draft plan
document, that was available for review by city staff, the community, and other stakeholders.

Plan Overview

The plan includes eight chapters that highlight the goals, policies, and recommendations for the
community and three appendices that suppott the plan. The following is an overview of the
contents of each chapter within the plan:

Chapter 1: Introduction — Introduces readers to the comprehensive plan, including describing the

purpose for a comprehensive plan, providing a brief history of planning in Matshall, and
ovetviewing the planning process.

Chapter 2: Issues and Opportunities — Highlights the issues and opportunities identified throughout

the planning process and illustrates how they were used to inform the plan’s goals, key themes, and
focus areas.



Marshall 2040 Comprehensive Plan December 7, 2022
Page 3

Chapter 3: Land Use — Provides futute development guidance for Marshall, including highlighting
existing land uses and zoning districts, outlining future development guidance, and suggesting

considerations and actions for the future.

Chapter 4: Utilities and Services — Reviews the existing utility and service infrastructure available
within the City of Marshall and highlights tools and strategies for maintaining quality infrastructure

while balancing growth opportunities.

Chapter 5: Economic Development — Highlights the existing economic characteristics within

Marshall and the greater region, explotes changing trends and opportunities, and highlights strategies
that will inform future action and implementation.

Chapter 6: Environmental and Cultural Resources - Recognizes the diverse natural and cultural

features that contribute to the identity of the community. Identifies tools for enhancing, preserving,
and maintaining these resources.

Chapter 7: Communities Facilities — Reviews the existing community facilities and offerings available

to Marshall community members, including those both offered by the city and other regional
partners.

Chapter 8: Implementation —Identifies a plan for action that will be used to inform investment and
growth decision making within the community that supports the goals and key themes identified
through community input.

Appendix A: Eatly Engagement Summary — Provides a summary of the eatly engagement events
and techniques used to inform the planning process and highlights the input heard through each

event.

Appendix B: Community Profile — Provides an ovetview of existing and historic demographic and
physical information about the community that informed the planning process. This information is
intended to provide a snapshot of the community at the time the plan was drafted.

Appendix C: Zoning Analysis — Summarizes the findings of an analysis of Marshall’s existing zoning
code to identify recommended updates and setve as a guide for making code amendments that
facilitate implementation of the Comprehensive Plan.

Updates Since November 2022 - Draft

The November 2022 Draft Plan was available for Public Review and comment between November
9, 2022 and December 4, 2022. Based on the comments teceived during that time, the following
changes have been made to the draft plan:

Page 2-3: “Marshall is home to 14,128 ((aeatly+4;200)) residents (modified 2020 Census count as
desctibed above), of which 75 petcent are White Alone, and approximately 25 percent are Hispanic




Marshall 2040 Comprehensive Plan December 7, 2022
Page 4

or Latino, Black or African American, American Indian ot Alaska Native, Asian, some other Race,
ot a combination of these (see Figure 2).”

Page 2-8 and 5-2: Changed the color of the Economic Development Goal.

Page 3-1: Replaced photograph with a new one.

Page 3-12: Added the following description of changes to the Future Land Use Map and Plan:

Key Updates to Future Land Use Plan/Map

The Future Land Use Map includes some key differences from the one included in the 1996
Comprehensive Land Use Plan:

1)  Residential Land Use Categories differentiates between residential land uses primarily based on density, including a low,
medium, and high-density category, rather than housing type. This will allow a mix of housing types throughout the city.

2) The FLUM includes three mixed use categories where multiple use types are allowed in the same locations or on the same
lot.

3) Identified categories in downtown include Downtown Mixed Use, allowing residential and commercial in the same structure
and Neighborhood Mixed Use, allowing residential and commercial uses on neighboring parcels. This is intended to reflect
the existing makeup of downtown, while still providing opportunities for development and redevelopment.

4)  More opportunities exist for “missing middle” residential development that aligns with the look and feel of the existing
community. Missing middle housing is focused on providing a mix of housing types, that are moderate density, including
duplexes, townhomes, and smaller apartment/condo buildings.

Page 3-14: Updated the Future Land Use Map as follows:

e Change patcels west of the intersection between Highway 23 and Highway 59 from
“Neighbothood Mixed Use” to “Commercial”

Page 3-15: Added the following discussion of housing preservation:

Housing Preservation

Many communities have embraced housing preservation and rehabilitation as a key strategy to help
address housing affordability concerns and maintain an affordable rental housing stock. Often,
ptesetving an existing home is more affordable than constructing new affordable housing options.
Accotding to the National Housing Trust, while more than 100,000 affordable apartments are built
each yeat, neatly twice as many units are lost “annually due to deterioration, abandonment, or
convetsion to mote expensive housing.”

As a community’s housing stock begins to age it is important that efforts are made to preserve the
housing stock in good condition to avoid losing those units. Opportunities exist for communities to
encourage the tehabilitation and preservation of those units. Programs include:

USDA Housing Preservation Grants — provides grants to sponsoting organizations, such as
local governments, for the repait or rehabilitation of housing units that are owned or occupied
by low-income individuals.



Marshall 2040 Comprehensive Plan December 7, 2022
Page 5

Low Income Housing Tax Credit — can be used to help property owners invest in histotic
buildings by converting them into an income producing use, such as low-income housing.

Page 4-3: Update second sentence of last paragraph as follows:
“They provide both ((effess)) bus and dial a ride services.”
Page 4-9: Update section “Fite and Emergency Medical Services (EMS)” as follows:

They assist the Lynd Fite Department on ((aH)) structural fires within the shared Lynd/Marshall
service area. They serve as primary fite response for ((reatly-two-thirds-of the-eounty)) a substantial

portion of Lyon County and, through mutual aid agreements, assists all fire departments in the

County.

Page 5-10: Major Employers data has been updated to reflect most cutrent data as reported by the
City: https://ci.marshall.mn.us/economic_development/workforce/index.php

Page 7-1: Replaced photographs with new ones.
Page 7-6: Replaced photographs with new ones.
Page 8-4: Added the following implementation action related to housing preservation:

HOUSING PRESERVATION: In coordination with adoption and implementation of housing
rental code, prioritize the preservation and rehabilitation of Matshall’s existing housing stock
through the use of funding programs, such as USDA Housing Preservation Grants and Low Income
Housing Tax Credits, and development of local programming and regulations that encourage
rehabilitation over reconstruction.

Fiscal Impact

None known.

Alternative/Variations

None.



m MARSHALL

CULTIVATING THE BEST IN US MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Marshall Planning Commission
Sharon Hanson, City Administrator
Jason R. Anderson, P.E., City Engineer/Zoning Administrator Q~
[
FROM: Ilya Gutman, Assistant Planning & Zoning Administrator A
DATE: December 7, 2022

SUBJECT: Ordinance amending Section 86-1 Definitions

Action Recommendation
Staff recommends the recommendation to the City Council approving the revisions amending
Section 86-1 Definitions as recommended by staff.

Background

These are changes to the Zoning ordinance definitions that clarify and explain terms used in the
zoning ordinance; some are added, and some are revised and/or coordinated for improved
consistency and better understanding. Some terms not used in the ordinance are also removed,
including all sign related definitions which have been moved to the Sign ordinance.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Alternatives/Variations
None recommended.

1G/cld / Attachments



Sec. 86-1. - Definitions.
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Abutting or abuts means areas or lots whose boundaries at least touch one another at a single point,
including areas or lots whose boundaries would touch but for an intervening alley.

Accessory building means a subordinate building which is located on the same lot as the principal
main-use building and the use of which is listed as a permitted accessory use and clearly incidental or

supplementary to the use of the principalmain building.

Accessory equipment means any permanent exterior structure, except buildings, which is located
eitheron the same lot as the principalmain use building or attached to any building on the lot and the use
of wh|ch is clearly 1n0|dental or supplementarv to the use of the principalmain building, such-as-for

including, but not limited to, TV antennas, AC units,
wind mills, solar panels, service tanks, children playgrounds, swimming pools, hot tubs, sportsbasketball
courts, kennels, and other similar small scale items. For the purposes of this section, amateur radio
antennas, flag and light poles, signs, and up to two electric vehicle charging stations, are not considered
accessory equipment.

Adult use means an amusement or entertainment distinguished or characterized by an emphasis on
material depicting, describing, or relating to sexual activities or anatomical areas; or which feature
strippers, exotic or topless dancing, male or female impersonators.

Alley means a public way less-than-30-feetin-width-which provides secondary access to
adjacentabutting properties.

Assisted living facility means a state licensed multiple family dwelling building-orpart-thereof
consisting-of-individual-dwelling-units-and-that includes common recreational spaces, a common dining

room and food preparation areas where meals are served on a daily basis. Occupants are provided with

personal care services because of age, disability or other reasons. Such-facility-is-licensed-by-the-state-

Attic means unfinished or partially finished space between the roof deck and the ceiling of the
topmost story, and which can be accessed from below by attic access panel or pull-down ladder.

Automobile wrecking,- sSee junkyards.

Awning means an roof-type architectural projection that is wholly supported by the building to which
it is attached, and which is comprised of a lightweight;-rigid frame structure over which a fabric or other
pliable covering is attached.

Balcony means an exterior floer-er-platform projecting from, and supported by, the building to which
it is attached without additional independent support.

Basement means a habitable portion of a building located fully or partly underground_and accessed

through a permanent stair or ramp;-but-having-less-than-half-of-itsfloor-to-ceiling-height-above-the
average-grade-of the-adjoining-ground.-This-portion-is-not-a-completed-structure-and-serves-asa
substructure-orfoundation-fora-building-

Bed and breakfast facility means any owner-occupied one-family dwelling ether-than-a-hotel-motel;
boardinghouse-orlodgingheuse-where the breakfast meal and lodging for compensation are provided for
transient or semi-permanent guestspersens pursuant to previous arrangements_and where the owners
serve as hosts. Such-persens{gGuests) customarily shal-have use of facility’s common areas such as
living room, dining room, library, etc.




Boarder means a person, not part of a housekeeping unit, who resideslives in a one- or two-family

dwelling or dwelling unit on a permanent or semi-permanent basiswith-a-special-contract- with-the-owner,

whereby the owner provides meals and lodging_for compensation.

Boulevard means a portion of the street right-of-way located between the street and private property,
unless a public sidewalk is present in which case it is a portion located between the street and public

sidewalknot-occupied-by-pavement.

Brewpub means a small brewery that serves and sells its product on premises in addition to off-
premises sales. For the purpose of this Ordinancearticle, brewpub is the same as taproom.

Buildable area means the portion of a lot remaining after required yards have been provided.

Building means any structure used for the shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, chattels or
property of any klnd and fully enclosed with fuII helqht walls on aII S|des and roof on tj—meludmg—fepthe

Building addition means an extension or increase in floor area, number of stories or height of an

existing building.

Building alteration (remodel) means any construction or renovation of an existing building other than
addition or repair.

Building area means gross area of the main floor of a building contained between exterior surfaces
of exterior walls, including all porches.

Building area, total, the sum of the gross horizontal areas of all stories of a building measured within
exterior surfaces of the exterior walls, and including basements.

Building code means the current Sstate Bbuilding Ceode.

Building. existing, means a building erected prior to adopting the building code or the one for which a
building permit and a permanent certificate of occupancy have been issued, even if they cannot be
located.

Building height means the vertical distance from the average of the highest and lowest point of that
portion of the lot covered by the building to the highest point of the roof edge or parapet for flat roofs; to
the deck line of mansard roofs; and to the mean roof height, defined as the average of the-between eaves
height and the height of the roof's highest point,-and-ridge for gable, hip and gambrel roofs.

Building official means the municipal building code official, certified under Minnesota- Statutes—§
326B.133_subd-2and-3 and designated by the city council, who is authorized to enforce the state
building code.

Building repair means any maintenance work, including replacement of deteriorated finishes and
broken equipment, and work to correct damage, including that caused by natural disasters or
malfunctioning equipment, performed on an existing building to restore it to previous condition.

Canopy means an roof-type architectural projection that is supported by the building to which it is
attached and atthe-outer-end-by not less than one additional vertical support_or an independent roofed
structure supported by two or more individual vertical supports.

Carport means a canopy structurebuilding serving as an automobile shelter and having one or more
sides fully open.

Comprehensive plan means a declaration of purposes, policies and programs for the development of
the City for the future and adopted by the City Council as one document.




Congregate living facility means a building or part thereof consisting of sleeping units designed.
intended or used by one or more persons, not members of a household unit, on a permanent or semi-

permanent baS|s and where reS|dents share common sanitation or cooklnq facrlltles or bothmdwduat

mclude convents shelters dormltorles and fratermtv or sororltv houses among others, but not nursing
homes or jails.
Construction documents means written or graphic documents prepared or assembled for describing

the design of. and providing other necessary information for, a project required to obtain a permit for
relevant work.

Court means an open_and uncovered unoccupied space at grade level bounded on three or more
sides by the exterior walls of a building or buildings on the same lot.

Crematorium means a building where dead bodies are burned to ashes.

Curb level means the level of the established curb in front of the building measured at the center of
such front. Where no curb level has been established, the city engineer shall establish such curb level or
its equivalent for the purpose of this chapter.

Day care facility means any facility, licensed by the State of Minnesotacemmissioner-efpublic
welfare, public or private, which for gain or otherwise regularly provides twoene or more
childrenindividuals with care, training, supervision, habilitation, rehabilitation or developmental guidance
on-aregularbasis, for periods of less than 24 hours per day, in a place other than the child'sindividual's
own home. Day care facilities lnclude—but—are—nethmrted—te famlly day care homes, group family day care
homes, day care centers, and and nursery schools;

. Nothing in this definition shall be construed to include mental
health care centers, substance abuse treatment facilities, and any facilitiesy excluded by Minn. Stat. §
462.357, subd. 7.

Deck means an open exterior fleer-or-platform supported on at least onetwe-eppesing sides by an
adjacent structure-and/erposts, or piers_or walls below it and elevated above adjacent grade more than
six inches_at any point.

Developer means the owner of the property, or a person or entity authorized in writing by the owner

of the property to act on behalf of the owneref file-the-applications-or-the-PUD and who will become the

owner of the property prior to any development of the property.

District,_zoning, means a section of the city for which the regulations governing the height, area and
use of buildings and premises_along with other supplemental requirements-or-building-appearance are the
same.

District, downtown -district means an area in the city characterized by lack of parking and reduced

yards and shown on the city zoning map_as an overlay district-and-generally-deseribed-aslimited-by-Sixth
Street-Lyon-Street First Street-and-Saratoga-Street.

District, Heritage, means an area in the city characterized by older, mostly original, buildings
comprising the core of the downtown district and shown on the city zoning map as an overlay district.

Drive-thru, drive-in, or drive-up means a business where customers drive through or into a specified
locality or place to complete a transaction from one's car, including obtaining and consuming food.

Dwelling means any building or portion of a building which is designed, intended, or used for
permanent occupancy exclusively-forresidential-purposes-by one or more personshuman-beings-either
permanently-ortransiently.




Dwelling, multiple family, means a building or a portion of a building containing designed-use-by
more than two dwelling unitsfamities.

Dwelling, one-family, means a building designed, intended, or used for permanent occupancy fer-use
exclusively by one familyhousekeeping unit, and providing complete, independent living facilities,
including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation.

Dwelling, two-family, means a building containing two dwelling unitsdesigned-for-use-by-twe-families.

Dwelling unit means a self-contained portion of a building designed, intended, or used for permanent
occupancy exclusively by one housekeeping unit and providing complete, independent living facilities-for
ene-ormore-individuals, including permanent provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and
sanitation.

Earth sheltered building means a building constructed so that 50 percent or more of the completed
structure is covered with earth. An earth sheltered building is a complete structure that does not serve just
as a foundation or substructure for aboveground construction. A partially completed building shall not be
considered earth sheltered.

Easement,_utility, means a grant by a property owner for the use of a strip of land for the purpose of
constructing and maintaining utilities, public or private, including, but not limited to, sanitary sewers, water
mains, electric lines, telephone lines, storm sewer or storm drainage courses, and gas lines.

Easement. access or roadway, means a grant by a property owner for the use of a strip of land for
the purpose of constructing and maintaining an access drive.

Existing building, see Building, existing.

Fagade or building elevation means theat entireportion-of-any exterior elevation of a building
exposed to public view extending the entire width of the building from the grade to the top of the roof edge
or parapet wall of a building with a flat or mansard roof or the bottom of the eaves line of a building with a

gambrel, gable, or hip roofand—theuenhmmd%heﬁh&bw@ngrelevahen

Farming means the cultivation of the soil or keeping farm animals, includingand-al related incidental
activities, incident-theretofor commercial purpose.

Floor, main, means the lowest building level above grade.

Footprint means the area of the land covered by a building's foundation.

Frontage means that boundary of a lot that abuts a public or private street-or-a-private-read or, for
the signage area calculations, the length of such boundary.

Free standing furnace means a furnace or burner designed,-and intended, and/or used for the
burning of wood or other fuel sources, that is located outside of a structure for which it is intended to
provide heat.

Garage, private, means a garage for storage of non-commercial power-driven vehicles belonging to
property owners or tenants only and which is erected as an accessory building_or is attached to the
principal use building.

Garage, public, means any premises, except those described as a private garage, used for the
storage or care of power-driven vehicles, or where any such vehicles are equipped for operation, repair or
kept for remuneration, hire or sale.



Garage sale (rummage sale, yard sale) means any display and sale of used personal property
conducted on residential premises by the occupant(s) of such property or on a parking lot of a community
center, church, school, etc. by members of those institutions.

Gazebo means a roofed accessory building partially open on all sides, typically used for relaxation or
entertainment.

Home occupation means any occupation or business of a service or shop character--except-family
day-care; conducted from the person's residence andbut which is clearly incidental and secondary to the
principalmain use of the premises as a dwelling. For the purpose of this Chapter, family day care is not
considered home occupation.

Hotel or motel means any building or portion of a building where lodging is offered to transient {less
than-30-days)-guests for compensation and in which there are more than twofive sleeping units, allreems
with no cooking facilities-in-an-individual-reom.

Hotel. extended stay, means a building or portion of a building where lodging is offered to transient
and semi-permanent guests for compensation and in which there are more than two sleeping units,
including some with limited cooking facilities.

Housekeeping unit means all persons residing together on the premises within-a-dwelling-unitwhose

relationship includes a substantial amount of social interaction including the sharing of housekeeping
responsibilities and expenses.

Impervious surface means that-portion-of a-parcel-or-lot- which-has-a surface covering which does not

permit water to percolate into the natural soil.

Junk or refuse means any scrap, waste, reclaimable material, or debris, whether or not stored or
used in conjunction with dismantling, processing, salvaging, storing, baling, disposal, or other use or
disposition. "Junk" includes, but is not limited to, tires, vehicle parts, equipment, paper, rags, metal, glass,
building materials, household appliances, brush, wood, and lumber.

Junkyard means open land erbuildings-where waste, discarded or salvaged materials and products
are brought, sold, exchanged, stored, cleaned, packed, disassembled, processed, compressed or
handled; such materials and products which-includes, but is not limited to,: scrap metal, rags, paper,
rubber products, glass products, lumber products and products from ferwrecking, disassembling and/or
crushing of automobiles and other vehicles.

Landing means a platform at the top or bottom of a stair or a flight of stairs or in front of a door.

Lot or plot means one unit of a recorded plat or subdivision or. if not a part of a plat, defined by
meets and bounds, occupied or to be occupied by buildings, including as a minimum such open spaces
as are required under this Cehapter and having at least one frontage en-a-publicright-ef-way-or a traveled
or-used-recorded public access.

Lot area means the land area within the lot lines.

Lot, corner, means a lot situated at the junction of and fronting en-two or more adjoining streets. For
the purpose of this definition, a curved street changing direction by more than 60 degrees shall be
considered two adjoining streets.

Lot depth means the averagemean distance between the front and rear lot lines; in most cases, it
may be approximated as a distance between center points of the front and rear lot lines. For the purposes
of this definition, the front lot line of a two-streetthe corner lot is the line opposite to the chosen rear lot
lineyard and the front lot line of a three-street corner lot is the middle one. For a double frontage lot, lot
depth means the average distance between two opposite front lot lines.

Lot, double frontage, means an interior lot having frontage on two not adjoining streets.

Lot, flag, means a lot with narrow or no frontage on the street publicright-of-way where vehicular
access is provided to the lot by means of a narrow portion of a lot or an access easement.



Lot, interior, means a lot other than a corner lot.
Lot lines means the lines bounding a lot and separating it from other lots anderpublic right-of-ways.

Lot line, front, means a lot line abutting a streetdedicated-public-right-of-way-except-alleys or any

other access way that provides the only site access.

Lot line, side, means any lot line adjacent to the front lot lineetherthan-a-front-orrearlotline, except
two-street corner lots, where one of the lot lines adjacent to the front lot line shall be designated a rear lot
line.

Lot line, rear, means any lot line other than a front or side lot line and which is usually directly

opposite the front lot line.-Alot-may-have-only-onerearlotline.

Lot, substandard, means any lot which does not meet the minimum lot size requirementsarea;
length-depthwidth or any other-dimensienal standards of thise Chapter, including, but not limited to,
setbacks and access requirementssection. Substandard lot is the same as nonconforming lot.

Lot width means the distance between end points of the side lot lines_at their intersections with the
front lot line-measured-along-the-frontlotline. For the purposes of this definition, the front lot line of a
double frontage lot is the access side one. For a two-street corner lot, lot width means the distance
between an end point of a side ot line at its intersection with the front lot line and a point of two front lot
lines intersection and for a three-street corner lot, lot width means the distance between two points of
front lot lines intersection.

Manufactured home means a structure—netaffixed-to-orpart-of real-estate; transportable in one or

more sections, which in the traveling mode; is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more in
length, or, when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet, and which is built on a permanent chassis
and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to the
required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and electrical systems contained in
it. A recreational vehicle or trailer is not a manufactured home.

Manufactured home park means any site, lot, field or tract of land upon which two or more occupied,
manufactured homes are harbored, either free of charge or for revenue purposes, and shall include any
building, structure, tent-vehicle-or enclosure used or intended for use as an accessory forpart-of-the
eguipment-of such manufactured home park.

Marquee means a flat roofed structure that is wholly supported by the building to which it is attached.

Nonconforming means a use or a structure lawfully in existence on April 6, 1964, or on the effective
date of amendments to this Cehapter, and not conforming to the current regulations for the zoning district
in which it is situated.

Occupancy, permanent, means residential occupancy other than temporary or semi-permanent.

Occupancy, semi-permanent, means residential occupancy over 30 days by persons who have
permanent residency elsewhere.

Occupancy, transient, means residential occupancy not exceeding 30 days

Outlot means a tract of land, included in a plat, which is smaller than the minimum size permitted for
lots or doesn't have proper access from a street and which is thereby declared unbuildable until combined
through plattlng with additional land; or; a parcel of land which is included in a plat and which is at least
double the minimum size and which is thereby subject to future platting prior to development; or a parcel
of land which is included in a plat and which is designated for public or private open space, right-of-way,
utilities or other similar purposes.

Owner means any person, agent, firm or corporation having a legal or equitable interest in the
property.




Patio means a flat structure made of concrete, brick, wood, or other building materials, elevated
above adjacent grade with-a-height-ofsix inches or less from-ground-levelfrom any point-of-the-structure;
and-not-attached-to-a-building.

Pergola means a structure forming a shaded area and made of vertical posts or pillars that usually
support cross beams and a sturdy open lattice.

Permit means an official document issued by the City that authorizes performance of a specified
activity.

Porch, four-season, or sunroom means a heated room with the glazing exceeding 40 percent of the
exterior wall area.

Porch, open, means a roofed deck surrounded by walls not higher than 42 inched, with or without
window screens above.

Porch, three-season, means an unheated room with the glazing exceeding 40 percent of the exterior

wall area.
Prefabr/cated bu1/dmg means any bu1|d|nq regulated by the bundlnq code-rnteneted—ﬁer—use—and

bwtdmg WhICh isn Iy constructed in fuII orin sectlons off the buxldlng srte to be mstalledfer

installation, er—assembty—aneLmstaHatren on the building site on the permanent foundation.

PUD (planned unit development) means a special zoning district, which may include single or mixed
uses and; one or more lots or parcels, where one or more of the zoning or subdivision regulations, except
use requlations, may be waived or altered intended-to create a more flexible, creative and efficient
approach to the use of land, and which is subject to the procedures, standards and regulations contained
in this Chapterarticle.

Recreational vehicle means a vehicle, motorized or towed, that is built on a single chassis and is
designed for recreational, travel, or seasonal camping use. For the purposes of this Chapter, the term
recreational vehicle shall be synonymous with the term travel trailer/travel vehicle, camper, or motor
home.

Residential facility means any facility, licensed by the State of Minnesotacemmissionereofpublic
welfare, public or private, which for gain or otherwise regularly-provides twoene or more
personsindividuals with a-24-hour-per-day-substitute-for-care, food, lodging, training, educatron
supervision, habilitation, and rehabilitation for 24 hours per day
reaseryeannepbeiumrshedmthemdwrduatsewn—heme Re3|dentlal facilities include, but are not limited
to,: A foster homes, hospices
resrdentlal treatment centers matermty—ehetters—group homes and residential programs er-schoels for
handicapped children. Nothing in this definition shall be construed to include jails, nursing homes,
substance abuse treatment facilities, or any-facilitiesy excluded by Minn. Stat. § 462.357, subd. 7.

Right-of-way means athe_publicly owned strip of land covered, or intended to be covered, by a public
roadway_or other vehicle or pedestrian path, including-and adjacent land, which is dedicated, designated
or reserved for public use.

Roomer means a person, not part of a housekeeping unit, who rents a single room in a one- or two-
family dwelling or dwelling unit on a permanent or semi-permanent basis, with no right-te-cooking

privileges orfacilities-exceptoceasional-meals-and no special contract for food.




Self-storage warehouse_or {ministorage) means a building subdivided constructed-into
compartments of 500 square feet or less each, which are rented to individuals on a monthly basis for
storage of personal property.

Setback means the distance between the property line and the building on a lot.

Short-term rental unit means a dwelling or dwelling unit where lodging for compensation is provided
for transient quests pursuant to previous arrangements.

Sleeping unit means a room or a suite of rooms designed, intended, or used for transient or semi-
permanent occupancy and providing facilities for sleeping; it may also provide facilities for living, eating,
sanitation, and cooking. Such rooms that are part of a dwelling unit are not considered sleeping units.







Solar energy collector means any device or system relying-upen-direct-solar-energy-and associated
faCllltIeS that converts solar energy to electrlcal energy thap&empleyed—m%eeﬂeeﬂe&ef—selapeﬂe#gy

Stacking lane means a waiting area for drivers who remain in their vehicles awaiting service at a

drive through establishment.

Staff development review committee means a committeeshall-be appointed by the city administrator
toand-will conduct a review of all development plans for any PUD. The committee shall include the city
engineer, zoning administrator, and any other members of the city staff or city consultants.

Story means a portion of a building included between the upper surface of a building floor and the
upper surface of the floor or roof above and located entirely above ground.

Story, half, means athat finished portion of a building under a gable, hip or gambrel roof, the wall
plates of which, on at least two opposite exterior walls, are not more than two feet above the floor of such
story, or, if not at exterior wall, not more than five feet above the story floor, and which is accessed
through a permanent stair.

Street means a public roadway set aside for public vehicular traffic regardless of size or designation
but excluding access and roadway easements and alleys as defined therein-and-driveways-serving-only

one-parcel-ofland. Streets may be public or private.




Structure means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires location on the ground or
attachment to something having a location on the ground.

Tent means an independent canopy structure, with or without side covers, constructed of fabric or
other pliable material and supported by a lightweight, rigid frame.

Thoroughfare means a major public roadway set aside for heavy continuous vehicular traffic through
the city and designated as such on the city zoning map.

Use means the purpose for which land erpremises-or a building thereon is designated, arranged or
intended, or for which it is or may be occupied or maintained.

Use, accessory, means a use occurring along with, and related to, the principal use in the same lot
and occupying more than ten percent but less than 25 percent of the principal building total area, except
for single family dwellings this percentage may be increased to 33 percent, or a separate accessory
building.

Use, conditional, means a use not normally permitted in a particular zoning district, but which may be
allowed under certain conditions by the City Council action.

Use, incidental, means a use occurring along with, and related to, the principal use in the same lot
and occupying ten percent or less of the principal building total area. Incidental use shall not be
considered in determination of the zoning district placement.

Use, interim, means a use not normally permitted in a particular zoning district, but which may be
temporary allowed by the City Council action until a particular date, until the occurrence of a particular
event, or until the use is no longer allowed.

Use, mixed, means a single building containing more than one type of land-use or a single
development of more than one building and use, where different types of land-uses are in close proximity,
planned as a unified complementary whole, and functionally integrated to the use of shared vehicular and
pedestrian access and parking areas.

Use, permitted, means a use formally allowed in a particular zoning district.

Use, principal, means the main use of the property occupying at least 75 percent of the building area
and determining the zoning district placement.

Use, temporary, means a use temporary authorized by this Chapter for a fixed period of time not
exceeding 180 days.

Variance means a modification ervariation-of the provisions of this Cehapter as applied to a specific
piece-of-property which may be allowed under certain conditions by the City Council action, except that
modification in the permittedaliowable uses within a zoning district shall not be considered for a variance.

Wind energy conversion systems (WECS) means any device or system, such as a wind charger,
wmdm|ll or wind turbme and assomated faC|I1t|es that converts wmd energy to electrlcal energy. Ihts

Yard means an open unoccupied, except for accessory buildings or structures, space lying between
any line of the lot and the nearest-line-cf the walls or any other vertical structural support of a principal
use building.

Yard, front, means a yard extendlng across the front of the lot between the lot side lines-and-lying




Yard, rear, means an yardepen-space-unoccupied-exceptfor-accessory-buildings-on-the-same-lot
with-a-building; extending across the rear of the lot between the lot side lines-and-lying-between-therear
lines-of the building-and-the-rearline-of the-lot.

Yard, required, means the minimum yard width required in a particular zoning district.

Yard, side, means an_yard epen-u r-the-buildin :
and-extending across the side of the lot betweeanem the front lot line andte the rear lot Ime

(Code 1976, § 11.04; Ord. No. 404 2nd series, § 1, 11-16-1998; Ord. No. 410 2nd series, § 1, 2-
16-1999; Ord. No. 443, § 2, 11-6-2000; Ord. No. 472, § 1, 1-7-2002; Ord. No. 512 2nd series, 3-
1-2004; Ord. No. 590 2nd series, § 1, 2-19-2008; Ord. No. 609 2nd series, § 1, 4-28-2009; Ord.
No. 615 2nd series, § 3, 10-27-2009; Ord. No. 619 2nd series, § 1, 6-8-2010; Ord. No. 655 2nd
series, § 1, 5-22-2012; Ord. No. 656 2nd series, § 1, 5-22-2012; Ord. No. 681 2nd series, § 1, 9-
24-2013; Ord. No. 746 2nd series, § 1, 11-26-2019)

Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2.



m MARSHALL

CULTIVATING THE BEST IN US

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Marshall Planning Commission

Sharon Hanson, City Administrator

Jason R. Anderson, P.E., City Engineer/Zoning Administrator
FROM: Ilya Gutman, Assistant Planning & Zoning Administrator %
DATE: December 7, 2022

SUBJECT: Ordinance repealing Section 86-51 Bed and breakfast

Action Recommendation
Staff recommends the recommendation to the City Council repealing Section 86-51 Bed and
breakfast as recommended by staff.

Background

This change is the result of the City’s proposed Rental ordinance, when bed and breakfast will
become a short-term rental covered by the new ordinance as any other rental property in town.
This will save owners money and allow for simpler process. This change will not be brought
before the City Council for consideration of final adoption until the rental ordinance is approved.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Alternatives/Variations
None recommended.

1G/cld / Attachments



MARSHALL

CULTIVATING THE BEST IN US

MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Marshall Planning Commission

Sharon Hanson, City Administrator

Jason R. Anderson, P.E., City Engineer/Zoning Administrator ank
FROM: Ilya Gutman, Assistant Planning & Zoning Administrator <V/O
DATE: December 7, 2022

SUBJECT: Ordinance amending Section 86-97 One-Family Residence District

Action Recommendation
Staff recommends the recommendation to the City Council approving the revisions amending
Section 86-97 One-Family Residence District as recommended by staff.

Background

These changes are miscellaneous in nature and fall into three different categories. Some are the
result of the near future Rental Ordinance adoption: they include allowing more than three
unrelated adults living in a house, making bed and breakfast a permitted use, and moving
keeping any number of boarders and roomers from Conditional Use to Accessory Use. Some
changes are derived from the new Comprehensive Plan, such as referring to unit density and
removing some conditional uses, for example, golf clubs and museums; these changes will help
with keeping this zoning district more residential in nature. And the rest are just housekeeping
items to make things more consistent and easier to read and understand and better coordinate
with other sections.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Alternatives/Variations
None recommended.

1G/cld / Attachments



Sec. 86-97. - R-1 one-family residence district.

(@)

(b)

Intent; scope. This section applies to the R-1 one-family residence district. This R-1 district is intended
to preserve and enhance low density (less than 6 units per acre) residential areas-for-one-family

detached-dwellings.

Permitted uses. The following uses shall be permitted in the R-1 one-family residence district:

Churches and other places of worship

One-family manufactured homes.
Residential facility serving six or fewer individuals.

Day care facility serving 14 or fewer individuals.

One-family detached dwellings,

three-unrelated-persons.

Bed and Breakfast, provided property is registered with the City as rental.

Permitted accessory uses. The following uses shall be permitted accessory uses in the R-1 one family
residence district:

Accessory uses customarily incidental to the uses permitted in this section, such as private vehicle

garages-and-storage-sheds.

Accessory building complying with section 86-163, including, but not limited to, private garages,
storage sheds, fallout shelters, and gazebos.

Accessory equipment complying with section 86-164, including, but not limited to, solar energy
collectors and systems, playgrounds, and sports courts.

Ealloutshelters.

Keeping of not-meore-than-two-boarders and/or roomers by a resident family, provided property is
registered with the City as rental.

Private swimming pool and hot tub when completely enclosed within a non-climbable fence five feet
high with openings no greater than four inches in any dimension and self-closing and self-locking
gate. Swimming pools exempt from the building permit requirements as defined in the state building
code and hot tubs with latchable covers do not need to be enclosed.

_Offices of persons and home occupations meeting the
specific conditions of section 86-50, provided an interim use permit is obtained when required.

Private amateur radio towers and antennas complying with division 6.

Private vegetable gardens complying with Section 86-247 (a) (5).

Conditional uses. All conditional use permits for the R-1 district may only be issued if the proposed
use meets the specific requirements of this section and also meets the supplemental regulations as
outlined in article VI and meets the eligibility for conditional use permits as specified in article I, division
2. The following uses may be allowed in the R-1 one famlly district by conditional use permit:




Fire stations, community-center-buildings;-public libraries, ,cmseews-art—gaﬂeﬂes—pesteﬁ&ee
greenhouses{excluding-commereial); and essential public utility structures serving the surrounding

area.

Other residential uses of the same general character as listed in subsection (b).

Parks and recreational areas, public or private.
Resi A . e indisidils.

. il . indivi .
School, public or private, kindergarten through grade 12.

Two-family dwellings under single ownership, joint ownership or tenants in common.
Two-family dwellings under split ownership under the following conditions:

(1) The dwellings have separate utility service lines to each unit.

(2) The owners execute and record a common maintenance agreement containing covenants as to
uniformity of exterior appearance of the dwellings.

(3) Proper separation of units, occurring along the lot line, exists as provided by the building code.

(4)  Such dwellings comply with all yard regulations for single-family dwellings, except side yard
regulations between the dwelling units.

(5) The dwelling location on the lot be compatible with the neighborhood.

(6) Landscaping, fencing, grading, exterior lighting, and driveway conform to the surrounding
neighborhood.

7)  Any accessory building is compatible with the dwellings and the surrounding neighborhood.

8) The dwellings shall be a maximum height of two stories.

(9) Not more than 50 percent of the lot area shall be occupied by buildings.
0 -

Height and yard regulations. Height, yard, area and lot width and depth regulations for the R-1 district
are as follows:

(1)  Height regulations. No building hereafter erected or altered shall exceed 3 stories or 30 feet in
height.

(2) Front yard regulations.

a. There shall be a front yard having a depth of not less than 25 feet except as otherwise
provided in this section.



(f)

b. There shall be a front yard of not less than 35 feet on a lot or plot that abuts a thoroughfare

as shown on the adepted city _w_gmgther:eughia%es—man

(3) Side yard regulations. There shall be a side yard on each side of a building, each having a width
of not less than five feet, except for non-residential uses, the width shall be no less than 25 feet
if abutting another one-family residence district lot.

(4) Rear yard regulations. There shall be a rear yard having a depth of not less than 25 percent of
the lot or plot depth, or 18 percent of the lot or plot depth for a two-street corner lot.

(5) Lot or plot area regulations.

a. Every lot or plot upon-which-a-one-family-dwelling-is-erected-shall contain an area of not less
than 8,000 square feet.

b. Every lot or plot upon which a two-family dwelling is erected or altered shall contain an area
of not less than 10,000 square feet.

(6) Lot width and depth regulations. Every lot or plot en-which-a-one-family-dwelling-or-a-two-family
dwelling-is-erected-shall have a minimum width of not less than 70 feet at the building setback
line, and a minimum depth of not less than 110 feet.

Supplemental regulations. Additional regulations in the R-1 one family residence district are set forth
in article VI.

(Code 1976, § 11.07; Ord. No. 407 2nd series, § 1, 12-21-1998; Ord. No. 443, § 3, 11-6-00; Ord.
No. 529 2nd series, § 1, 7-5-2005; Ord. No. 590 2nd series, § 1, 2-19-2008; Ord. No. 699 2nd
series, § 1, 9-9-2015; Ord. No. 712 2nd series, § 1, 9-13-2016; Ord. No. 732 2nd Series, § 1, 1-8-
2019)



m MARSHALL

CULTIVATING THE BEST IN US MEMORANDUM

TO: Members of the Marshall Planning Commission

Sharon Hanson, City Administrator

Jason R. Anderson, P.E., City Engineer/Zoning Administratorca(k
FROM: Ilya Gutman, Assistant Planning & Zoning Administrator ﬂL\o
DATE: December 7, 2022

SUBJECT: Ordinance amending Section 86-230 Required number of spaces

Action Recommendation
Staff recommends the recommendation to the City Council approving the revisions amending
Section 86-230 Required number of spaces as recommended by staff.

Background

These are minimal changes to the parking spaces table. One change was made necessary by a
Rental ordinance being proposed and another was the result of analyzing a specific request for
parking to significantly exceed current requirements.

Fiscal Impact
None.

Alternatives/Variations
None recommended.

1G/cld / Attachments



Section 86-230 Required Number Of Spaces

Off-street parking areas of sufficient size to provide parking for patrons, customers, suppliers, visitors
and employees shall be provided for each use. For mixed use buildings, the required number of parking
spaces shall be calculated separately for each area use and then added up. Unless otherwise noted,
required off-street parking noted as a S.F. (square foot) ratio is to be applied to the gross building area

for each use. The mlnlmum number of oﬁ-street parking spaces for each use is listed in table 86-230.

Apartment (more than 4 units)

1/ efficiency or one bedroom unit plus 2/ two or more
bedroom unit plus 1/ 4 units for visitors

Assisted and congregate living facility

0.5/ unit plus 1

Art gallery, museum 1/ 500 S.F.
Assembly or auditorium with fixed seats,

1/ 4 seats
theatre
Assembly without fixed seats not listed 17100 S.E.

anywhere else, arcade

Auction house

1/ 100 S.F. or 1/ 4 fixed seats, whichever is greater

Bank

1/ 300 S.F.

Baseball, soccer, football field, arena or
stadium

1/ 4 seats plus 20/ field (court, rink, etc.) plus 1 oversize
spaceffield (court, field, etc.)

Beauty salon, barber shop, massage or
tattoo parlor, tanning salons

2/ service station or bed

Bed and breakfast

1/ guest bedroom plus 2

Boarding or lodging house

1/ rented bed plus 2

Boat, ATV, RV sales and service

1/ 1,000 S.F. plus as required for outside sales lot

Bowling alley 4/ alley plus 2
Car wash 2
Church 1/ 5 seats in largest auditorium

Clinic, medical, dental, etc., doctor or

chiropractic office

1/ 250 S.F.

Convenience store

1/ 200 S.F. plus 1 plus 1 oversize space plus as required
for fuel station if applicable

Corrections facility, jail

1/ 10 beds plus 1/ employee

Court, tennis or racquetball, without fixed

seating

2/ court plus 1

Dance hall

1/ 50 S.F.

Day care

1/ classroom plus 1/ 10 participants




Dwellings, one to four units

2/ dwelling plus one for each roomer or boarder_or each
tenant beyond four for units not rented to a single family

Drinking or dining establishment, sit down
or buffet restaurant, bar

1/ 50 S.F. of seating area , plus 1/ 100 S.F. of kitchen and
storage area

Dining establishment: fast food restaurant

1/ 75 S.F. of seating area , plus 1/ 100 S.F. of kitchen
and storage area

Farm implement, industrial equipment, and
truck sales and service

1/ 1,000 S.F. plus 50% of required for outside sales lot

Fraternity or sorority house, dorm

1 / bedroom plus 1/ 4 bedrooms for visitors

Funeral home

1/ 100 S.F. or 1/ 4 fixed seats in largest parlor, whichever
is greater

Furniture, large appliances, spas, building
materials, garden supplies sales, retail
greenhouse

1/ 500 S.F. for area less than 20,000 S.F. plus 1/ 1,000
S.F. for area over 20,000 S.F.

Golf course

4/ green plus 1/ 200 S.F. of clubhouse

Grocery, food, and beverage sales

1/ 200 S.F. plus 1 oversize space/ 30,000 S.F.

Golf, miniature course

2/ hole plus 1

Golf, driving range

2/ tee plus 1

Hospital 1/ 2 beds plus 1/ employee
Kennel 1/ 10 kennels plus 1/ employee
Library 1/ 500 S.F. plus 1/ employee

Manufactured home park

2/ home plus as required for office building

Manufacturing, fabricating, processing or
printing plants

1/800 S.F.

Motor vehicle fuel station

1 plus as required for convenience store if applicable

Motor vehicle sales

1/ 500 S.F. plus as required for outside sales lot

Motor vehicle repair

34/ service stall plus 12

Motor vehicle garage (commercial)

1/ stall plus 1

Motel or hotel

2 plus 1/ room plus 1 oversize space/ 30 rooms

Nursing or rest home, memory care

1/ 6 beds plus 1/ employee

Office: business (data processing center,

call center, radio and TV station, etc.) 14200 8.F.
Office: professional (insurance,
accountant, travel agent, etc.), public|1/300 S.F.

(city, county) or industrial/contractor

Qutside sales lot

1/ 5,000 S.F. for area less than 20,000 S.F. plus 1/ 10,000
S.F. for area over 20,000 S.F.

Park

4/ acre plus 2/ playground plus 5/ shelter plus 20/sports
field

Recreation: fithess club, gymnasium,
dance and martial arts studio, without fixed
seating

1/ 200 S.F.




Residential facility, group home 0.5/ bedroom plus 2

Retail store: general, department, | 1/ 200 S.F. for area less than 2,000 S.F. plus 1/ 300 SF
hardware, discount, drug; shopping center; | for area over 2,000 S.F. but less than 100,000 S.F. plus 1/
pawn shop; wireless store 1,000 S.F. for area over 100,000 S.F.

Retail store: specialized, boutique 1 plus 1/ 500 S.F.

Service establishment: laundry, repair, dry-
cleaning, rental, phot studio, etc. 1/500 S.F. plus 1

Service establishment (labor intensive):
glazing shop, take out only restaurant,| 1/ 500 S.F. plus 3
bridal shop, etc.

School: Elementary or junior high, private | 1.5/ classroom or 1/ 20 students or 1/ 4 seats in the
or public largest auditorium, whichever is greater

10/ classroom or 1/ 3 students or 1/ 4 seats in the largest
auditorium or gymnasium, whichever is greater

School: Senior high, public or private

School: post-secondary, professional or

business (educational buildings) 15/ classroom

Short-term rental 1/ bedroom minus 1, but not fewer than 2

Skating rink 25

1/ 200 S.F. of lap pool area plus 1/ 500 S.F. of kids pool
area plus 1/ employee

Swimming pool

Terminal, passenger-bus, train, airline 1/ 200 S.F.

Veterinary clinic 1/ 500 S.F.

Rental storage units 1/ 4 units plus 1 plus as required for office if applicable
Wholesale sales and warehouse 1/ 2,000 S.F.

Table footnotes:

(a) Continuous benches and pews shall be assumed to allow one person per 22 inches of length.

(b) Rental storage units parking spaces located in front of storage units do not require painted line
identification and independent access.

(c) When parking requirements are determined by employee counts, such calculation shall be based
on the maximum number of employees on the premises at any one time; when parking
requirements are determined by student or participant count, such calculations shall be based on
the maximum design or licensed capacity.

(d) Parking spaces for all outside sales lots and other outside uses shall be calculated separately
based on this table in addition to building parking requirements.

(e) The number of required parking spaces for parks, sports fields, churches, and stadiums may be
reduced by 20 percent if gravel or grassy overflow space, adequate to compensate for reduced
parking, is provided and all landscaping section requirements are met without considering
overflow space.

(f In all industrial zoning districts, the city may allow a reduction in the number of required parking
spaces for industrial uses when the owner can demonstrate, in documented form, a required
need less than prescribed by the ordinance . The city may require the additional land that is



necessary to meet the required parking standard to be placed in reserve for parking development
should the use change or parking provided be determined inadequate. If at any time the city
determines parking to be inadequate, the city may require construction of any or all of the
additional parking held in reserve.

(9) Buildings or building areas where an accessory storage constitutes more than 30 percent of the
use area shall be considered mixed uses and parking calculations shall be based on mixed use
requirements.

(h) Buildings where an auxiliary use serving the main use constitutes more than 20 percent of
building human occupancy or building area and people not using the rest of the facility are
allowed to be present shall be considered mixed use buildings and parking calculations shall be
based on mixed use requirements except only 90 percent of parking spaces required for auxiliary
uses shall be provided.

(i) If calculated number of parking spaces is less than five, an accessible space shall be provided in
addition to those spaces.

(Ord. No. 686, § 1, 6-10-2014)




